
 

 

Agenda for a meeting of the Standards Committee to be 
held on Thursday, 25 April 2024 at 10.30 am in Room 
202 - City Hall, Bradford 
 
Members of the Committee – Councillors 
 
LABOUR 
 

CONSERVATIVE LIBERAL DEMOCRAT  GREEN 

Lal 
Mohammed Nazam 
Azam 
Ferriby 
K Hussain 
 

Davies 
 

Griffiths Hickson 

 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS:  
 
Independent Person: Mr M Shakeel 
Parish & Town Council Members: Parish Councillor N Cameron & Town Councillor R James 
 
 
Notes: 
• This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below. 
• The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting 
(such as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting 
who wishes to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with 
the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary 
arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound 
recorded. 

• Members of the public are respectfully reminded that this is a meeting that is 
being held in public NOT a public meeting. The attendance of the public to 
observe the proceedings is welcome. 

• If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item. 

From:       
Jason Field 
Interim Director of Legal and Governance 
Agenda Contact: Kanwal Amrez 
Phone: 07929 070288 
E-Mail: kanwal.amrez2@bradford.gov.uk 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

  
A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
 
  
1.   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 
(Members Code of Conduct – Part 4A of the Constitution) 
  
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted members on matters 
to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure must include the nature of the 
interest. 
  
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes apparent to the 
member during the meeting. 
  
Notes: 
  
(1)       Members must consider their interests, and act according to the following: 
  

Type of Interest You must: 
    
Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest; not participate in the 
discussion or vote; and leave the meeting 
unless you have a dispensation. 

    
Other Registrable Interests 
(Directly Related) 
OR 
Non-Registrable Interests 
(Directly Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the item only if 
the public are also allowed to speak but 
otherwise not participate in the discussion or 
vote; and leave the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

  
  

  

Other Registrable Interests 
(Affects) 
OR 
Non-Registrable Interests 
(Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the meeting, 
participate and vote unless the matter affects 
the financial interest or well-being 
  

 (a) to a greater extent than it affects the 
financial interests of a majority of inhabitants 
of the affected ward, and  
  
(b) a reasonable member of the public 
knowing all the facts would believe that it 
would affect your view of the wider public 
interest; in which case speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to speak 
but otherwise not do not participate in the 
discussion or vote; and leave the meeting 
unless you have a dispensation. 

  
(2)       Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or their 

spouse/partner. 
  
(3)       Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must not vote in 

decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, and must disclose at 
the meeting that this restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with 
these requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992.   

 



 

 

  
(4)       Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council Standing Order 

44. 
  
  
  

2.   INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution) 
  
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.   
  
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.   
  
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.   
  
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.   
  

(Kanwal Amrez – 07929 070 288) 
  
 

 

 
B. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
  
3.   PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING COMPLAINTS ALLEGING A 

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT 
WITHIN THE AREA OF CITY OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT COUNCIL. 
 
The Interim Director of Legal and Governance will submit a report 
(Document “A”) which provides details of proposed amendments to 
the procedure which is used to deal with complaints submitted under 
the Member’s Code of Conduct adopted by the Council and with 
complaints submitted under the Codes of Conduct adopted by Parish 
and Town Councils in the District Area.  
  
Recommended –  
  

(1)  That the amended Procedure for considering complaints 
alleging a failure to comply with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct within the area of City of Bradford Metropolitan 
District Council as set out in Appendix 1 be recommended 
to Council for adoption to be effective from the beginning 
of the Municipal Year 2024/2025 in respect of complaints 
submitted from the commencement of the Municipal Year 
2024/2025. 

  
 

1 - 14 



 

 

(2)  That upon adoption by Council, delegated authority be 
given to the Director of Legal and Governance to make any 
consequential amendments required to the Council’s 
constitution.  
  

                                                                 (Mandy Hill – 07814 779101) 
 

 
THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER 
 



 
 

Report of the Director of Legal and Governance to the 
meeting of Standards Committee to be held on 25 April 
2024 
             A 
 
 
Subject:  
 
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct within the area of City of Bradford Metropolitan District 
Council. 
 
Summary statement: 
 
To consider proposed amendments to the procedure which is used to deal with complaints 
submitted under the Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by the Council and with 
complaints submitted under the Codes of Conduct adopted by Parish and Town Councils 
in the District area.    
 
 
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY: 
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by the Council requires members to promote 
equality and not discriminate unlawfully against any person. The Code emphasises that 
councillors have a central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the 
local authority's performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and 
public commitment to equality across public services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Jason Field 
Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance 
 

 
 

Report Contact:  Mandy Hill 
Head of Governance  
Phone:  M:07814 779101   
E-mail: mandy.hill@bradford.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3/



LegDem/HoG/MH/26.03.24 
1 

1. SUMMARY 
 
 This report details proposed amendments to the procedure which is used to deal 

with complaints submitted under the Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by the 
Council and with complaints submitted under Codes of Conduct adopted by Parish 
and Town Councils in the District area.  

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1  In July 2012 Council adopted a Members’ Code of Conduct following the 

implementation of the Localism Act 2011 which required all councils to have a 
Member Code of Conduct. At the same meeting Council also adopted a procedure 
for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.   

 
2.2   In March 2022 Council adopted a new Code of Conduct effective from the 

beginning of the Municipal Year 2022/23. 
 
2.3  The procedure for considering complaints alleging failure to comply with the Code 

of Conduct was not reviewed when the Council adopted the new Code of Conduct 
and has not been substantively reviewed since its adoption in July 2012. 

 
2.4  The procedure is followed when dealing with complaints submitted under the 

Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and under Codes of Conduct adopted by 
Parish and Town Councils in the District area. 

 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
  
3.1 The Procedure has been refreshed and updated to ensure that complainants and 

those members subject to a complaint are clear as to the procedure to be followed. 
The Council was assisted by the Association of Democratic Services Officers who 
have knowledge and experience of good practice in this area.       

 
3.2 Attached at Appendix 1 is the current procedure together with suggested 

amendments shown in red. The main substantive suggested amendments are as 
follows: 

 
 3.2.1 To insert a new paragraph 6 detailing clearly the requirements which need to 

be met before a complaint can be accepted by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 3.2.2  Clarifying the categories (paragraph 8) where it is unlikely that a complaint 

will be considered valid and if considered invalid will not be progressed 
under the procedure.  This has been amended to include complaints which 
relate to a person who has died, resigned or is seriously ill where it would not 
be in the public interest to pursue and complaints which the Monitoring 
Officer considers are malicious, vexatious, politically motivated, tit- for- tat or 
not sufficiently serious to warrant further investigation or action. 

  

Page 2



LegDem/HoG/MH/26.03.24 
2 

 
  3.2.3 Making it clear that a Member is not notified of the complaint if the complaint 

does not satisfy the criteria in paragraph 6 or is not classed as a valid 
complaint. 

 
 3.2.4  Clearly providing for investigation of the complaint (stage 3) if considered 

necessary. 
 
 3.2.5  Making clear that any informal resolution between the parties is confidential 

between the parties and that a decision notice produced following 
consideration by the Complaints Sub-Committee of the Standards 
Committee will usually be published. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
 The adoption of the amended procedure will strengthen the Council’s governance 

arrangements in respect of considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with 
the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct. 

 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 The Council has a statutory duty under the Localism Act 2011 to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct by its members and co-opted members. 
 
6.2 Any changes to the current procedure for considering complaints alleging failure to 

comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by the Council is subject to the 
approval of full Council.  

 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no sustainability, climate emergency, community safety, Human Rights 

Act, Trade Union, ward, nor children and young people implications in this report.  
 
7.2 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 
 Not applicable.  
 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None  
 

Page 3



LegDem/HoG/MH/26.03.24 
3 

9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 Recommend to Council the adoption of the amended Procedure as set out in 

Appendix 1. 
 
9.2  Recommend to Council the adoption of the amended Procedure as set out in 

Appendix 1 with additional amendments. 
 
9.3  Decide that the current Procedure does not need to be amended.  
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the amended Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply 

with the Members’ Code of Conduct within the area of City of Bradford Metropolitan 
District Council as set out in Appendix 1 be recommended to Council for adoption to 
be effective from the beginning of the Municipal Year 2024/2025 in respect of 
complaints submitted from the commencement of the Municipal Year 2024/2025.   

  
10.2 Upon adoption by Council delegated authority be given to the Director of Legal and 

Governance to make any consequential amendments required to the Council’s 
constitution.   

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Amended Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to 
comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct within the area of City of Bradford 
Metropolitan District Council.  
 
 

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
 None. 

Page 4



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 1  

                                         Appendix 1  
 
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct within the area of City of 
Bradford Metropolitan District Council 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This procedure should be used to deal with complaints submitted under the 

Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by City of Bradford Metropolitan District 
Council (“the Council”) and with complaints submitted under the Codes of 
Conduct adopted by the Parish and Town Councils in the District area. 
 

2.  The Members’ Code of Conduct applies to elected Members and voting co-opted 
members when they are acting in that capacity. Complaints which relate to a 
failure to comply with the rules about ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interests’ will at first 
instance be directed to the West Yorkshire Police for their consideration. 
Complaints about a potential breach of the general obligations should be 
submitted to the Monitoring Officer for consideration. 

 
3. The Monitoring Officer may nominate another officer of suitable experience and 

seniority to carry out any of the functions listed in this procedure and may appoint 
an external investigator. 

  
4. Complaints will not normally be processed under either stages 1 or stage 2 2 or 3 

of this procedure during the statutory election period for local elections with the 
exception of any matter which requires referral to the Police under paragraph 89. 

 
 
Stage 1 - Initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer 
 
5.  Complaints must be submitted in writing, must provide substantiated information, 

and should outline what form of resolution the complainant is seeking. Otherwise 
the Monitoring Officer should ask the complainant to resubmit their complaint.  
Ideally the complainant will use the Council’s Complaint form  correct complaints 
form to submit their complaint, but other written complaints will be accepted so 
long as they contain the relevant information. 

 
6.        Prior to the assessment of the complaint, the Monitoring Officer must be satisfied 

that the complaint meets the following requirements: 
 

a.    It is a complaint against one or more named Members of the Council or a 
Town or Parish Council within the District area; 

 
b.  The named Member or Members were in office at the time of the alleged 

conduct and were acting in their official capacity and the complaint does not 
relate to the named Member or Members’ personal or private life:    

 

Page 5



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 2  

c. The complaint if proven, would be a breach of the relevant council’s Code of 
Conduct in force at the relevant time.    

 
d. Confirmation of the name and address and contact details of the complainant.  
 
 
If the complaint fails to satisfy any of the above criteria the complaint cannot be 
considered, and no action will be taken. The Monitoring Officer will advise the 
complainant why the complaint has not been accepted.  

 
 
6-7.  Subject to the complaint satisfying the criteria in paragraph 6 above Tthe 

Monitoring Officer will will then assess consider the complaint and make a 
decision as to whether it will be treated as a valid complaint or not. 

 
78.  It is unlikely that the The following types of complaint will not be considered as 

‘valid complaints’ under this procedure if it falls into any of the following 
categories: 

 
a.  Complaints which are submitted anonymously  Complaints which are 

submitted anonymously;  
 
b.  Complaints which do not identify a subject Member; 
 
c.  Complaints which relate to a Member’s personal or private life; 
 
db.  Complaints concerning a failure to respond to a request from a constituent 

or other individual; 
 
ec.  Complaints which relate to the alleged actions of employees of the  

Councilrelevant Council or non-voting co-optees; 
 
fd.  Complaints which relate to a decision of an employee or a Committee; 
 
ge.  Complaints which relate to a person who has died, resigned or is seriously 

ill and therefore is not in the public interest to pursue  isor is no longer a 
Member of the relevant Council or which refer to alleged incidents before 
the person became a Member of the relevant Council; 

 
h.  Complaints which refer to alleged incidents which happened so long ago 

that there would be little benefit in taking action now; 
 
f      Complaints regarding alleged behaviour which has already been the      
subject of an investigation or some form of action.; 
 
j.g Complaints which relate to conduct or  whichincidents which is  are 

alleged to have occurred taken place more than 28 days prior to the 
submission of the complaint, unless there are exceptional circumstances 

Page 6



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 3  

to justify the later submission of the complaint.;  This is subject to 
paragraph (k) below.    

 
k. Complaints which relate to conduct which is alleged to have taken place 

prior to 1 July 2012. 
 
h  Complaints which the Monitoring Officer considers are malicious, vexatious, 
politically motivated, tit-for-tat or not sufficiently serious to warrant further 
investigation or action; 
 
i           Complaints where there is insufficient information currently available on 
reasonable enquiry to demonstrate a potential breach of the relevant Code of 
Conduct; 
 
j.  Complaints where alternative, more appropriate, remedies should be explored 
first. 
  

8.9 Complaints which relate to an alleged failure to comply with the rules regarding 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests will at first instance be referred to the West 
Yorkshire Police for investigation.  If the Police determine not to take any action 
in response to the allegation, then the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Chair of Standards Committee, will consider whether it is appropriate for the 
complaint to be considered under this complaints procedure. 
 

9.10 Complaints which contain a request for the complainant’s identity to be withheld 
may be considered to be ‘valid complaints’, although the complainant’s identity 
will only be withheld in exceptional circumstances. If the Monitoring Officer does 
not consider it appropriate to withhold the complainant’s identity, the complainant 
will be given the opportunity to withdraw their complaint before it proceeds to the 
next stage.  Anonymous complaints which reveal potential fraud or corruption will 
be referred to the  InternalCouncil’s Internal Audit section for consideration under 
the Council’s adopted Whistle blowing Policy. 

 
10.11  In all cases where the complaint names a Member of a relevant authority, the 

Member will be notified of the complaint unless the complaint does not satisfy the 
criteria in paragraph 6 or is not classed as a valid complaint. . If the Monitoring 
Officer decides that the complaint is ‘invalid’, this notification is made for 
information only. 

 
11.12 If the complaint relates to an employee or is a service related issue, the 

Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the relevant service in order for them 
to respond to the complainant directly. 

 
1213 . In any case where the Monitoring Officer decides that the complaint is ‘invalid’, 

they will write to the complainant explaining why their complaint cannot be dealt 
with under this procedure. There is no appeal process for decisions taken by the 
Monitoring Officer at this stage. 

 

Page 7



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 4  

14.      Where the Monitoring Officer assesses the complaint as a valid complaint and 
the complaint relates to the Chair of Standards Committee, the Monitoring Officer 
will ask the other members of Standards Committee to elect an Acting Chair for 
the purposes of considering the complaint under this Procedure.   

 
Stage 2 - Informal resolution 
 
135.  If, following initial assessment, the Monitoring Officer decides that the complaint 

should be treated as a ‘valid complaint’ they will write to the complainant and 
explain that the matter is to be referred to the subject Member for them to provide 
a response to the complaint.   

 
146.  At the same time the Monitoring Officer will refer the matter to the subject 

Member and the relevant Group Whip for their consideration.  In this 
correspondence t The Monitoring Officer will refer the matter to the subject 
Member, usually by providing a copy of the complaint and providewill provide the 
subject Member with a reasonable timescale within which to respond to the 
complaint (usually this will be 28 days), and  The Monitoring Officer also will 
provide the subject Member with the contact details for the Independent Person. 
 

15. If the subject Member is the Group Whip the complaint will be sent to the Group 
Leader.  In the case of a Parish or Town Council without structured political 
groups a copy of the complaint will be sent to the Clerk of the Council. 

 
167 The subject Member will be asked to consider whether he/she is prepared to 

propose an informal resolution of the complaint to be communicated to the 
complainant. 

 
178  Types of informal resolution might include: 
 
 a.  An explanation by the subject Member of the circumstances surrounding 

the complaint; 
 
 b.  An apology from the subject Member; 
 
 c.  An agreement from the subject Member to attend relevant training or to 

take part in a mentoring process; 
 
 d.  Offering to engage in a process of mediation or conciliation between the 

subject Member and the complainant; or  
 
 e.  Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
 
189. Before deciding upon a course of action the subject Member may seek guidance 

from a Group Whip, the Independent Person, and/or the Monitoring Officer.  
 
1920. The Independent Person is available to the subject Member to give them advice 

on the severity of the complaint and what form of resolution they would consider 
appropriate. Providing such guidance will not prevent the Independent Person 

Page 8



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 5  

from giving a view to the Standards Committee about the complaint at a later 
stage.  

 
201. The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant of the response, usually by 

providing to the complainant a copy of the  andresponse and any proposals for 
resolution of the complaint received from the subject Member and ascertain 
whether the complainant is able to agree with any proposals. 

 
22       Throughout the informal resolution stage of the Procedure the Monitoring Officer 

may also consider additional fact-finding is required.  
 
213. Once the Monitoring Officer has received details of the complainant’s position 

regarding the response from the subject Member and following any fact-finding 
he/she considers necessary,  he/she will, following consultation in consultation 
with the Chair of the Standards Committee, determine whether the subject 
Member (or Group Whip) has appropriately addressed matters which have been 
raised by the complainant. 

 
22. 24  The Monitoring Officer will also consider whether the complaint is 

malicious, vexatious, politically motivated, tit-for-tat or not sufficiently serious to 
warrant further investigation or action. If the Monitoring Officer considers that is 
the case, then no further action will be taken.   The Chair of the Standards 
Committee and the Monitoring Officer will also consider whether the complaint is 
malicious, vexatious, politically motivated, tit-for-tat or not sufficiently serious to 
warrant further action.  If they consider that is the case then no further action will 
be taken.   

 
235.  Where the subject Member has appropriately addressed the matters raised there 

will be no further action taken in respect of the complaint and the Monitoring 
Officer will notify both the complainant and the subject Member of this decision. 
The relevant town or parish council clerk will also be notified if the subject 
member is a town or parish councillor.   

 
246.  Where it has not been possible to appropriately address matters, the the 

Monitoring Officer will assess the complaint following consultation with the Chair 
of the Standards Committee and decide whether to refer the complaint for 
investigation under stage 3 below. The Monitoring Officer will consider the public 
interest and the need for proportionality when making this decision.   complaint 
will be referred to the Standards Committee for consideration. The Monitoring 
Officer will notify both the complainant and the subject Member of this decision. 

 
257. There will be no appeal process for decisions taken by the Monitoring Officer. 

and the Chair of the Standards Committee at this stage. 
 
28.     Any decision taken by the Monitoring Officer under this stage including any 

informal resolution reached is confidential between the parties.   
 
 
Stage 3 – Standards Committee Investigation  

Page 9



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 6  

 
 

29.      If the Monitoring Officer decides that the complaint should be investigated, he or   
she will carry out the investigation personally or delegate the investigation to another 
officer of the Council, an officer of another authority or an external investigator. The 
scope of the investigation is to be agreed by the Monitoring Officer. An investigation 
report will be produced by or for the Monitoring Officer, who will then decide whether to 
take no further action, whether the complaint is suitable for informal resolution at this 
stage, or whether the investigation report is submitted to the Standards Committee as 
set out in Stage 4 below. The view of the Independent Person will be sought and taken 
account of by the Monitoring Officer when deciding whether to take no further action, 
whether the complaint is suitable for informal resolution following completion of the 
investigation report or whether the investigation report is submitted to the Standards 
Committee as set out in Stage 4 below.             

 
Stage 4 – Standards Committee  
 
2630.  The Monitoring Officer will prepare a report for consideration by the Complaints 

Sub - Committee of the Standards Committee (“the Sub – Committee”). This 
report will include readily obtainable information (such as minutes of meetings or 
Clerk’s notes), a summary of the complaint and the efforts made to resolve the 
matter informally. 

 
2731.  The Monitoring Officer must arrange for a meeting of the  the Sub - Committee to 

be convened to consider the Monitoring Officer’s report. of the complaint.  The 
Sub – Committee may will consider the Monitoring Officer’s report in private, 
subject to the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Council. However  
but the outcome of their deliberations will be reported to the next meeting of the 
Standards Committee. 

 
28. 32 The Sub-Committee will be made up of three Members of the Standards 

Committee, one of whom must be from the same political group as the subject 
Member (wherever possible), but not all of the Members will be from the same 
political group. The Chair will be elected from among the membership at the 
beginning of the meeting, butmeeting but cannot be from the same political group 
as the subject Member. 

 
2933.  The following people will also be invited to attend the Sub-Committee meeting: 
 
 a. The complainant; 
 b. The subject Member and/or their representative; 
 c. The Group Whip (if relevant); and 
 d. The Independent Person. 
 
3034. The Monitoring Officer (and the investigator if not the Monitoring Officer) will also 

attend the meeting in order to present their report.report. Other witnesses may be 
called by the Monitoring Officer in addition to those persons listed in paragraph 
33 above.  

 

Page 10



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 7  

315. After initial consideration of the Monitoring Officer’s report, the Sub-Committee 
will take statements evidence from the following parties (either in person or in 
written form if the person is unable to attend the meeting): 

 
 a. The complainant; and 
 b. The subject Member. 
 
326. The Sub-Committee may also ask questions of anyone present at the meeting in 

order to reach a conclusion on the complaint. 
 
33.7  Before reaching a final decision on the complaint, the Sub - Committee must 

seek, and take account of, the view of the Independent Person in relation to the 
complaint.  

 
348.  If the Sub-Committee is unable to reach a conclusion on the complaint on the 

basis of the information before it, it may adjourn the meeting and request that the 
Monitoring Officer seeks the further information required. However, when doing 
so the Sub-Committee should consider whether the information will be readily 
available to the Monitoring Officer.  

 
359.  Once the Sub-Committee is satisfied with the information before it, it must decide 

the following issues: 
 
 a. Whether the subject Member has failed to comply with the relevant 

Members’ Code of Conduct; 
 
 b. Whether further action is warranted; and 
 
 c. What form of action might be appropriate. 
 
36.40 If the complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor the Sub-Committee will 

only make a decision regarding whether the subject Member has failed to comply 
with the relevant Members’ Code of Conduct. This decision, and the reasons for 
it, will be communicated to the relevant Parish or Town Council in order for it to 
make a decision as to whether further action is warranted and what form of 
action would be appropriate. The Sub-Committee may make recommendations 
to the relevant Parish or Town Council as to whether further action is warranted 
and if so what form of action would be appropriate.  

 
37.41 In all other cases, if the Sub-Committee concludes that, on the balance of 

probabilities, the subject Member did not fail to comply with the Members’ Code 
of Conduct, this will conclude the complaints process. In such cases no further 
action will be taken in respect of the complaint, although the Sub-Committee may 
still wish to consider making a recommendation to the authority with a view to 
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct in general.  Such 
recommendations may include proposed changes to internal procedures and 
practices or training for Members in general. 

 

Page 11



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 8  

3842 . If the Sub-Committee concludes that, on the balance of probabilities, the subject 
Member has failed to comply with the  MembersCouncil’s Members’ Code of 
Conduct, the Sub-Committee must go on to consider whether action should be 
recommended in respect of the subject Member, and what form of action might 
be appropriate. 

 
3943 .  The recommendations available to the Sub-Committee are limited to   
include : 
 
 a. A formal letter to the subject Member from the Chair of the Standards 

Committee; 
 
 b.  Formal censure by a motion of full Council; or 
 
 c. Removal by the authority of the Member from a relevant Committee(s) 

subject to statutory and constitutional requirements. 
         
          If the Sub-Committee wish to consider alternative recommendations, for example 

to instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the subject 
Member or to recommend mediation, the Sub-Committee will seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer.   

 
404.  The Sub-Committee may make a recommendation in relation to one or more of 

the above sanctions to full Council, the Group Whip or the Chair of the Standards 
Committee. The Chair of the Sub- willCommittee will confirm any such 
recommendations in writing within ten working days of the Sub-Committee 
meeting. 

 
415. The Sub-Committee may also make general recommendations to the authority 

with a view to promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct within the 
authority. As stated above, such recommendations may include proposed 
changes to internal procedures and practices or training for Members in general.  
The Monitoring Officer will be responsible for communicating such 
recommendations to the relevant Committee or officer for consideration. 

 
426.  Within ten working days of the meeting the Chair of the Sub-Committee will write 

to the complainant and the subject Member explaining the final decision of the 
Sub-Committee and detailing any recommendations made. A decision notice will 
be produced and will usually be published.  

 
437. There will be no right of appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

LEGDEM/SH/DP –16.11.15 9  

 
 
G:\Legal Services\City Solicitor Group\Complaints - Councillors new regime\Forms & Templates\New Procedures for Dealing with 
Member Complaints 2012 - Updated Oct 2015.doc 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING COMPLAINTS ALLEGING A FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT WITHIN THE AREA OF CITY OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL.
	Procedure for Dealing with Member Complaints  amendments final 160424


